Public Document Pack
High Peak Borough Council

THE EXECUTIVE AGENDA
Date:

Thursday, 26 April 2018

Time:

6.30 pm

Venue:

The Board Room, Pavilion Gardens, Buxton
18 April 2018

PART 1
1.

Apologies for absence

2.

Declarations of Interest
i)
ii)

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
Other Interests

3.

To approve the minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 10)

4.

Equality and Diversity Policy (Pages 11 - 22)

5.

Gateway Improvement Programme (Pages 23 - 30)

6.

Consultation on the National Planning Policy Framework (Pages 31 - 42)

7.

Minor Amendments to Street Trading Consent Policy to include Charitable Events
(Pages 43 - 66)

8.

To resolve that the public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following
items because there may be disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in
Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

PART 2
9.

To approve the exempt minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 67 - 68)
(Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any
particular person (including the authority holding that information))

10.

Review of Public Realm CCTV Surveillance System (Pages 69 - 118)
(Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any
particular person (including the authority holding that information))

11.

Alliance Environmental Services - Phase 2 Transfer of Services (Pages 119 - 142)
(Paragraph 3, 5 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of

any particular person (including the authority holding that information)
Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could
be maintained in legal proceedings.)
12.

Accelerated Housing Delivery Programme (Pages 143 - 156)
(Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any
particular person (including the authority holding that information))

13.

Facilities Management Arrangements (Pages 157 - 174)
(Paragraph 3, 4 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of
any particular person (including the authority holding that information)
Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated
consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations matter
arising between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or
office holders under the authority.)

14.

Electrical Testing and Remediation Housing Revenue Account Properties - Contract
Award Report (Pages 175 - 190)
(Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any
particular person (including the authority holding that information))

15.

Disposal of two strips of land at Dollywood Close, Buxworth (Pages 191 - 198)
(Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any
particular person (including the authority holding that information))

SIMON BAKER
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
Membership of The Executive
Councillor T Ashton (Chair)
Councillor J McCabe

Councillor T Kemp (Vice-Chair)
Councillor E Thrane

Agenda Item 3
High Peak Borough Council
THE EXECUTIVE
Meeting:

Thursday, 15 February 2018 at 6.30 pm in The Board Room, Pavilion
Gardens, Buxton

Present:

Councillor T Ashton (Chair)
Councillors T Kemp and E Thrane
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor J McCabe

18/46

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
(Agenda Item 2)
Councillor Kemp declared a disclosable pecuniary interest in agenda item 7
“Community Right To Bid - Nomination of a Community Asset (The
Serpentine Plant Nursery)“ (reason: beneficial interest in land adjacent to
asset nominated).

18/47

TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
(Agenda Item 3)
RESOLVED:
That the minutes of the meeting held on 7 December 2017 be approved.

18/48

THIRD QUARTER FINANCIAL, PROCUREMENT & PERFORMANCE
REVIEW 2017/18
(Agenda Item 4)
The purpose of the report was to inform members of the Council’s overall
performance and financial position for the period ended 31st December
2017 (“Third Quarter 2017/18”). The report was considered by the
Corporate Select Committee on 12 February 2018. The position was
summarised as follows:
Subject
Finance

Headline
The Finance headlines for the Third Quarter were:
Performance against Budget
 The General Fund budget for 2017/18 was forecast to be
underspent by £1,260,760 at the Quarter 3 stage.
 The underspend was required to be ring-fenced to support an
additional drawdown against reserves in 2018/19 to account for the
impact of business rates appeals and reliefs
Efficiency Programme
 The overall efficiency target of £310,000 for 2017/18 was projected
to be achieved at the third quarter stage – with £225,250 achieved
to date. However, this was dependent on the progression of key
efficiency programmes.
Housing Revenue Account

The Housing Revenue Account was forecast to be in surplus by
£1,169,190 -Page
£659,000
3 of which contributed to ongoing Financial

The Executive
Thursday, 15 February 2018

Subject

Headline
Improvement Plan savings.
Capital Programme



The Capital Programme budget for 2017/18 was £6.1m
including the carry forward of capital underspends from
2016/17. The projected outturn was £4.2m which represented
an underspend of £1.9m relating to the reprofiling of asset
management plan schemes



Procuremen
t

Performanc
e

The HRA Capital Programme for 2017/18 was £4.15 million, with
spend forecast to be £0.34m underspent against budget at Quarter
3.
Treasury Management
 Cash investments held at 31st December 2017 totalled £21.9
million.
 Council borrowing at 31st December 2017 totalled £72.2 million.
 The Council’s net interest receipts general fund budget was
projected to be underspent by £17,000, with a £80,000 underspend
on the HRA
Revenue Collection
 85.2% of council tax was collected by 31st December 2017,
compared to 85.6% for the same period last year.
 81.9% of business rates was collected by 31st December 2017
compared with 83.0% for the same period last year
 At the end of Quarter 3 the value of sundry debt over 60 days old
was £266,422 which compares to £273,073 at 31st December 2016
The Procurement headlines for the Third Quarter were:
 22 procurement activities were completed (1 high value (greater than
£172,000) – gas servicing and solid fuel service contract)
 The procurement forward plan included 69 procurement activities
scheduled for 2017/18 (either HPBC only or joint)
 At the 31st December 2017, 67% of procurement activity undertaken
was on the forward plan and the Council paid 96% of its invoices
within 30 days

The Performance headlines for the Third Quarter were:

59% of the key performance indicators were on track
 Of the 19 Priority Actions within the Corporate Plan, one was
rated ‘amber’, one was awaiting a decision, the remainder
being classified as ‘Green’; and
 The Council received 64 complaints, 54 comments and 50
compliments in the Third Quarter. Repeat complaints and
response times both on track

Options considered:
Detailed analysis was contained within the appendices to the report.
RESOLVED:

That the third quarter 2017/18 financial, procurement and performance
position detailed in Appendices A, B and C and summarised at paragraph
3.3 of the covering report be noted.
18/49

2018/19 BUDGET & MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2018/19 TO
2021/22
Page 4

The Executive
Thursday, 15 February 2018

(Agenda Item 5)
The purpose of the report was to present the proposed Budget for 2018/19,
updated Medium-Term Financial Plan 2018/19 – 2021/22, Procurement
Forward Plan 2018/19 and proposed Fees and Charges for 2018/19. The
report was considered by the Corporate Select Committee on 12 February
2018.
Options considered:
There were no options to consider at this stage. Options would be need to
be developed in order to close the financial deficits highlighted in the
updated plan.
RECCOMENDED:
That the Executive recommends that Council:

1.

Approve the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
Budget for 2018/19 as detailed in Appendix A (section 8)

2.

Approve the revised Medium-Term Financial Plan (2018/19 to
2021/22) as detailed in Appendix A, including the revised Capital
Programme (attached at Annex A) for the General Fund and HRA

3.

Approve the proposed Procurement Forward Plan for 2018/19,
providing the authority to procure based on procurement activity
detailed in Appendix B

4.

Approve the proposed Fees and Charges for 2018/19 as detailed in
Appendix C

5.

Approve a Band D Council Tax of £186.36 for 2018/19 (an increase
of 2.9% from 2018/19)

6.

Approve the following HRA charges:
- Dwellings rents to reduce by an average of 1% (over 52
weeks) from £70.73 to £70.00 average per week
- Garage rents to be increased by 5% (over 52 weeks) from
£6.16 to £6.47 average per week
- Other charges including service charges to increase by a
maximum of 5% for current tenants
- Fuel charges at individual blocks have been reviewed and the
2018/19 charge is based on 2016/17 and 2017/18 actual fuel
usage/prices, charged on an individual scheme basis.
- From 1st April 2018, new tenants are charged ‘formula’ rent
(less 1%) plus any applicable service charge based on the
actual cost to the Council

7.

Note the Chief Finance Officer's view that the level of reserves are
adequate for the Council based on this budget and the circumstances
in place at the time of preparing it (Appendix A section 7)

Page 5

The Executive
Thursday, 15 February 2018

18/50

INFORMATION GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK
(Agenda Item 6)
The Council must comply with a number of different Acts and Regulations
when processing information.
The report presented an information
governance framework for managing information and the associated risks,
and supporting regulatory, legal, and operational requirements. The report
was considered by the Corporate Select Committee on 12 February 2018.
Options considered:


The Executive approved the
Governance (recommended).



The Executive
recommended).

did

not

outlined

approve

the

approach

outlined

to

Information

approach

(not

RESOLVED:

1. That the content of the report be noted and the proposed approach to
information governance be approved.
2. That the Council would register all Councillors with the ICO, and meet
the registration costs, unless individual councillors wish to opt-out from
registering.
18/51

COMMUNITY RIGHT TO BID - NOMINATION OF A COMMUNITY ASSET
(THE SERPENTINE PLANT NURSERY)
(Agenda Item 7)
(Councillor Kemp left the meeting during the consideration of this item and
took no part in the discussion)
As the Executive was not quorate for this item the decision would be dealt
with via an Individual Executive Decision.

18/52

CEMETERY REGULATIONS REVIEW
(Agenda Item 8)
The report advised The Executive of revised Cemetery Regulations
proposed for adoption in the High Peak. The report was considered by the
Community Select Committee on 7 February 2018 which made reference to
the Council being legally required to accept responsibility for churchyards
and the potential financial implications should churches transfer
responsibility for churchyards to the Borough Council.
Options considered:
There were two options available to the Council:

Page 6

The Executive
Thursday, 15 February 2018



To

adopt

the

revised

regulations

(recommended).


To not adopt the revised regulations (not
recommended).

RESOLVED:

That the changes to Cemetery Regulations, which were set out in the
Appendix to the report be adopted.
18/53

WORLD WAR ONE COMMEMORATION ARRANGEMENTS
(Agenda Item 9)
The report presented proposals for the Council to mark the centenary of the
end of World War I during 2018. The report was considered by the
Community Select Committee on 7 February 2018.
Options considered:


That the Council created a £20,000 WW1 grants budget as proposed in
the report. (Recommended)



That the Council created a budget of a different amount and/or a
different mechanism for allocating the grant. (Not recommended)



That the Council did not create a WW1 grant budget. (Not
recommended)

RESOLVED:

1. That the Council helps to enable parish and town councils to hold WW1
centenary events and activities to mark the ending of the war in
November 2018.
2. That a WW1 grant budget of £20,000 be established. Grants would be
available to parish and town councils in High Peak based on the size of
the council (as detailed in 7.9 and 7.10 of the report) and for events in
Buxton and Glossop.
3. That a range of tools be used to promote the commemorations local and
national and involvement by communities including: the use of the
Council website, social media, Parish Forum and direct participation in
events.
18/54

HIGH PEAK DESIGN
DOCUMENT
(Agenda Item 10)

GUIDE

-

SUPPLEMENTARY

PLANNING

A draft design guide had been completed for High Peak. This had been
subject to public consultation with the public and a regional organisation that
promoted good architectural design. This report set out the results of the
consultation exercise and recommended that the amended design guide be
adopted as a Supplementary Planning Document.
The report was

Page 7

The Executive
Thursday, 15 February 2018

considered by the Economy and Growth Select Committee on 8 February
2018.
Options considered:
There were two principal options:
Option 1 - Do Nothing
Without the design guide there would be a general lack of design guidance
that was specific to High Peak. There would be no mechanism by which the
Council could raise the quality of design and determine applications for
development within the area. Not recommended
Option 2 – Adopt the High Peak Design Guide
The adoption of the High Peak Design Guide would offer additional
supplementary design advice for developers, architects and agents when
submitting proposals for development in High Peak. The guide identified the
local building traditions and characteristics of the area and offered advice to
ensure that any new development enhanced and responds to the local
context. The guide and the corresponding technical appendices would
improve and raise the standard of design across the area and could be used
in the determination of planning applications and appeals. Recommended
RECCOMENDED:

That the Executive recommends that Council:
1. Note the consultation comments and officer’s responses to them;
2. That the Council adopts the Design Guide and;
3. Delegate approval to officers to make any technical updates to the
design guide, including the detailed appendices, as required
18/55

BINGSWOOD INDUSTRIAL ESTATE - ACCESS AND INFRASTRUCTURE
FOR EMPLOYMENT
(Agenda Item 11)
The report set out the results of long-running negotiations with owners of
businesses at Bingswood Industrial Estate in Whaley Bridge. The
negotiations had been aimed at securing a financial commitment from the
businesses to build a new bridge and associated infrastructure to improve
access on to the estate and reduce HGV traffic in the town centre. Under
current funding rules the project required a mixture of public and private
funding in order to gain the essential external support. The D2N2 Local
Enterprise Partnership (the LEP) had made it clear that any public funding
must be matched by a significant contribution from the private sector
beneficiaries of the investment. The report stated that the businesses were
not willing to make the contribution and therefore the recommendation was
to close the project to build a bridge connecting the northern part of the
industrial estate via a bridgePage
across8the River Goyt.

The Executive
Thursday, 15 February 2018

The report was considered by the Economy and Growth Select Committee
on 8 February 2018 which expressed concerns with regards to the closure
of the project. It was suggested that negotiations should continue with
businesses, stressing the need to address the HGV movements in the town
centre which could lead to the re-location of the existing businesses on the
industrial estate and the associated costs. It was confirmed that a dialogue
would be maintained on these matters, with both the businesses and the
Town Council.
Options considered:


Option 1 – Continue the project as it is. This was not possible without
significant financial support from the businesses who would benefit from
the project. This support was not in place and therefore any public
funding bid would fail. Consequently it would be a poor use of public
resources to continue to pursue this option. This option was not
recommended.



Option 2 - Close the project and end the option of a new bridge but work
with existing businesses on the estate to support options for growth on or
off site. Officers would work to support business expansion both on and
off the Bingswood estate, working with businesses to secure funding for
growth and identify alternative sites for expansion. This was the
recommended option.

RESOLVED:

1. That Council support be switched to assisting individual landowners to
bring forward a less ambitious scheme that may deliver at least some
improvement to the access issues.
2. That the Council continues to work with existing businesses on the
Bingswood estate to facilitate and encourage growth, and to develop
resilience to potential disruption which might be caused if the existing
bridge fails.
18/56

TO RESOLVE THAT THE PUBLIC AND PRESS BE EXCLUDED FROM
THE MEETING FOR THE FOLLOWING ITEMS BECAUSE THERE MAY BE
DISCLOSURE TO THEM OF EXEMPT INFORMATION AS DEFINED IN
PART 1 OF SCHEDULE 12A OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972.
(Agenda Item 12)
RESOLVED:
That the public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following items
because there may be disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in Part I
of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

18/57

TO APPROVE THE EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
(Agenda Item 13)
RESOLVED:

Page 9

The Executive
Thursday, 15 February 2018

That the minutes of the meeting held on 7 December 2017 be approved.

18/58

PAVILION GARDENS CAPITAL WORKS PHASE 2
(Agenda Item 14)
The Executive approved a report the purpose of which was to agree
timescales and procurement arrangements for the second phase of the
Pavilion Gardens capital works.

The meeting concluded at 6.55 pm

CHAIRMAN

Page 10

Agenda Item 4

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Report to The Executive
26 April 2018

TITLE:

Equality and Diversity Policy

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR:

Councillor Emily Thrane – Executive
Councillor for Finance and Operational
Services

CONTACT OFFICER:

Mark Forrester, Democratic & Community
Service

WARDS INVOLVED:

All

Appendices Attached:
Appendix A: Corporate Equality Objectives 2018/19
Appendix B: Proposed Equality and Diversity Policy

1.

Reason for the Report:
To review the Council’s Corporate Equality
Objectives and the Corporate Equality Policy.

2.

Recommendation
2.1

3.

To consider and comment upon the Council’s Corporate Equality
Objectives 2018/19 and the adoption of a revised Corporate Equality
Policy.

Executive Summary
3.1

In 2015 both Alliance Councils adopted a new Equality and Diversity
Policy and approved Corporate Equality Objectives (which were
updated in 2017).

3.2

It is proposed to retain the current Equality Objectives for 2018/19 with
a progress report to be published at the end of the year.

Page 11

3.3

4.

As a result of monitoring legal cases which have considered the duties
of public authorities under the Equality Act 2010 it is recommended that
the Council revise its policy to address the findings in such cases.

How this report links to Corporate Priorities
4.1

This report relates to the Corporate Aims:


5.

6.

Provide Quality Services in Partnership with Communities.

Options and Analysis
5.1

That councillors consider and comments on the revised Equality Policy
and Corporate Equality Objectives. (Recommended)

5.2

That councillors does not consider or comment on the revised Equality
Policy and Corporate Equality Objectives. (Not recommended)

Implications
6.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
Fulfilling the duties of the Equality Act 2010 will contribute to achieving
increased safety for the most vulnerable within our communities.

6.2

Workforce
The Joint Equality and Diversity Policy supports the Council’s approach
to providing a modern and diverse workforce.

6.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
Undertaking the actions associated with the proposed Corporate Equality
Objectives will enable the Alliance Councils to meet their Equality Duties.

6.4

Financial Considerations
There are no direct financial implications arising from the proposed
policy and actions.

6.5

Legal
The Equality Act 2010 places a duty on the Council to publish Equality
Objectives and report on their achievement. The proposed revised
Corporate Equality Policy addresses the issues arising from the
decisions in legal cases considering duties under the Act.

Page 12

6.6

Sustainability
None.

6.7

Internal and External Consultation
The proposed Corporate Equality Objectives provide for consultation
with ‘protected groups’.

6.8

Risk Assessment
An effective policy and implemented plan of action will reduce the risk of
poor decision making and legal challenge.

7.

Background and Detail
7.1

The Equality Act 2010 placed a number of duties on Councils, including
the duty to publish evidence of compliance with the duties in the Act
and the Council’s Equality Objectives.

7.2

In 2015 both Alliance Councils adopted a new Equality and Diversity
Policy and approved Corporate Equality Objectives.

7.3

The Council published updated Equality Objectives in 2017. While the
current objectives are not framed as outcomes the intention is that
actions associated with them will lead the Council to focus on key
issues for protected groups.

7.4

The Council’s transformation programme has resulted in new systems
and approaches to customer contact/ service, committee management
and staff training. Introduction of these systems has been a priority and
with progress on the equality actions dependent on these
developments the Council is now in a good position to achieve its
objectives. It is proposed to retain the current Equality Objectives for
2018/19 with a progress report produced at the end of the year.
(Appendix A)

7.5

Officers have reviewed legal cases where there have been objections
to decisions by public bodies and an alleged failure to follow equality
policies/duties has been a ground for challenge. Given the risk of such
challenge to the Council it is proposed that the Council’s policy is
reviewed to ensure that it is clear and focussed on the Council’s duties
under the Act.

7.6

The proposed revised policy is attached at Appendix B for
consideration.

Page 13

Mark Trillo
Executive Director & Monitoring Officer

Web Links and
Background Papers

Location

Page 14

Contact details

Appendix A
Corporate Equality Objectives 2018/19
High Peak Borough Council & Staffordshire Moorlands District Council
Equality & Diversity Scheme: Action Plan 2018/19
Equality Objectives
Action
Knowing our communities
To understand who lives in our
 Update the Community Profile (a
communities and their needs.
resource which describes the makeup
of our borough/district by protected
characteristics) and promote its use to
service managers.
 See also consultation (below)
Place shaping, leadership and commitment
To clearly state our equality priorities and  Ensure that measures are included in
ensure that we have systems in place to
service plans as they are revised and
achieve them.
brought together as an overall plan.
Community engagement and satisfaction
To ensure that we include those with
 Update the consultation forward plans.
‘protected characteristics’ in our
consultation and engagement processes.
Responsive services and Customer care
To ensure that equality performance
 Incorporate consideration of equality
actions are included in service plans and
impacts as part of the Modern Gov.
monitored.
committee management process.
 Train managers to understand the
equality impact assessment process.
A modern and diverse workforce
To ensure that our workforce reflects as
 Pilot the use of a staff profile
far as possible the makeup of the
questionnaire (collecting information in
community we serve and has the
relation to protected characteristics)
necessary skills
and promote to staff.
 Provide equality training for staff.

Page 15

This page is intentionally left blank

Equality & Diversity Policy
(DRAFT)

Page 17

Policy Statement
High Peak Borough Council (HPBC) (the Council) is committed to fulfilling its duty
under the Equality Act. To




Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other
conduct prohibited by the Act.
Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not.
Foster good relations between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not.




1. Purpose and Scope
1.1

The purpose of having this policy is to provide a coherent approach to tackling
equality and diversity across all the protected equality characteristics (age,
disability, gender, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnerships,
pregnancy and maternity*, race, religion/belief and sexual orientation) It also
aims to make equality and diversity integral to the way that the Council works
in order to achieve:







A clearer understanding of the needs of the residents of the High Peak
Better informed decision-making and policy development
Excellent quality services which meet varied needs
More effective targeting of policy and resources that will do the most to
increase equality
Better outcomes and greater confidence in public services
A more effective use of talent in the workforce

2. Responsibilities
2.1

The Chief Executive with senior management teams are responsible for
providing leadership in the implementation of this policy and for ensuring that
they and their staff understand and comply with their responsibilities under the
Equality Act.

2.2

Councillors have overall responsibility for the direction and scrutiny of this
policy and will ensure that principles of fairness and equality guide the
decision making process.

*

Matters in relation to paternity pay and leave are appropriately considered by the Council as an
employer.

Page 18

3. Service Delivery
3.1

The Council provides direct services, regulates, funds and commissions
services. In all these roles and activities the Council is committed to fair and
equitable access to services, whether they are provided directly by Council
employees, in partnership with other agencies or indirectly through external
contract, funding or commissioning arrangements. All service areas will take
steps to ensure that Council functions and policies are carried out in a way
that complies with statutory requirements and meets the needs of all local
people as appropriately as possible.

3.2

The Council aims to ensure that all its functions and policies are carried out in
a way that complies with statutory requirements by:


Ensuring equal access, fair treatment and appropriate provision to the
whole community regardless of age, disability, gender, gender
reassignment, marital or civil partnership status, pregnancy or maternity
status, race, religion, nationality, social background or sexual orientation;



Providing services that are designed to meet a wide range of different
needs in the community;



Providing appropriate services, adapting them, where reasonable, to meet
the needs of the whole community promoting equal access to services,
including producing clear information about how to access our services
(for example in large print);



Providing and publicise clear information on how customers can complain
or comment about the services they have received and respond efficiently
to complaints;



Ensuring that wherever practicable, all services and buildings are
accessible to everyone;



Carrying out consultation and undertaking formal impact assessment when
necessary to ascertain whether current service provision and any
proposed changes are consistent with legal obligations.

4. Training
4.1

Equipping Councillors, managers and Council employees with the knowledge
and skills is essential.
Training will be focused at a range of levels including:


Training at an appropriate level for all employees on equality and diversity;

Page 19



General awareness as part of the induction programme for all new
employees.



Refresher training when appropriate.

5.

The Council as an Employer

5.1

The Council is a major employer in the Borough. As an employer the Council
aims to:


Develop, review and promote policies and practices that ensure equality of
opportunity and eliminate discrimination for our workforce in all areas of
employment, including recruitment, retention, learning and development, and



Reflect the diverse nature of the Borough within the Council’s workforce.

6. Working with Partners
6.1

The Council works closely with many different groups of people in the
community on numerous issues and will take a leading role to drive equality
and diversity forward across the Borough.

6.2

Key partners include community and voluntary groups. These provide an
excellent way of communicating, consulting and designing services with the
people of the area as well as acting a monitoring forum on how the Council is
delivering.

7. Procurement and contract management
7.1

The Council will take into account in its tender evaluation and contracting
processes a potential contractor’s approach to equalities in terms of its
employment practices and service delivery. It will do this by asking potential
contractors relevant questions and include appropriate provisions in its
contract documents relating to these matters.

8. The Council’s Action Plan
8.1

The Council has published its equality and diversity objectives which will set
out specific actions which the Council will undertake, including timeframes, to
promote its equality objectives. This will be updated when required.

8.2

The Council’s equality and diversity objectives will be audited periodically to
ensure delivery of those objectives and the results published on the Council’s
website.

Page 20

8.3

The Council will arrange appropriate training for all its staff.

9. Contact details
For further information or if you would like this document in large print, Braille or
audio format, contact Mark Forrester, Manager, Democratic and Community
Services:

mark.forrester@highpeak.gov.uk
01298 28400
High Peak Borough Council
Buxton Town Hall
Market Place
Buxton
Derbyshire
SK17 6EL

Page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
Report to Executive
26 April 2018
TITLE:

Gateway Improvement Programme

PORTFOLIO HOLDER:

Councillor Tony Kemp – Executive Portfolio
for Tourism, Regeneration & Licensing

CONTACT OFFICER:

Richard Tuffrey, Principal Regeneration
Officer

WARDS INVOLVED:

All Buxton and Glossop Wards

Appendices
1 - Plan showing the proposed Fairfield to Station Road Buxton Gateway Zone
2 - Plan showing the proposed A57 western entrance to Glossop Gateway Zone

1

Reason for the Report

1.1

To seek authority to introduce a Gateway Improvements Programme to act as
a catalyst to the development of strategically important “Gateway Zones” as
follows:
(a) the Fairfield to Station Road corridor in Buxton
(b) the A57 western entrance to Glossop

2

Recommendations

2.1

The Executive is recommended to:
(a) Authorise officers to establish a Gateway Improvements Programme as set
out in this report with an initial focus on the Fairfield to Station Road
corridor in Buxton and the A57 western entrance to Glossop;
(b) Authorise officers to work on two early projects as part of the programme
and subject to further details being brought back to the Executive as
follows:
i.

Proposals aimed at improving the front appearance of properties
along the west side of Fairfield Road Buxton via a targeted grant
scheme and improvements to front forecourt gardens

Page 23

ii.

Prepare proposals to improve the site and area around the former
Spread Eagle Public House (Riverside Inn) at Woolley Bridge
where the new proposed junction of A57 and Wooley Lane is
proposed in Glossop.

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

This report is proposing to introduce a Gateway Improvements Programme
which will, over time, bring together a whole range of regeneration initiatives
aimed at improving facilities for the immediate local communities affected
whilst also improving the appearance of the key strategic routes into Buxton
and Glossop. It is proposed that the Gateway Improvements Programme
recognises two Gateway Zones – the Fairfield to Station Road corridor in
Buxton and the A57 western entrance to Glossop at Dinting Vale. Plans
showing these proposed zones are appended to this report.

3.2

In both of these zones, the aim will be to plan a series of actions to improve
the appearance and function of these key strategic locations that act as
gateways and, in turn, create an improved first impression of the town. It is
proposed to prepare an action plan identifying opportunities for improving
these locations, taking into consideration any planned projects/ initiatives and
development opportunities. The actions could range from development of
housing/ employment sites, enhancement of built frontages of existing
buildings, improved traffic management, alternative ways of managing street
cleanliness and appearance etc.

3.3

The delivery of the Local Plan’s vision for High Peak has taken a major step
forward by the long awaited construction work relating to the Buxton Crescent
and Thermal Spa project now being well underway and the recent
announcement of the Mottram Moor to Glossop Link Road being added to the
government’s highways investment programme. However, realising the full
potential of these developments on the regeneration strategies for the Buxton
and Glossop town centres could be hindered by the poor appearance of parts
of Fairfield Road into Buxton and the former Spread Eagle Public House in
Glossop.

3.4

As quick wins, therefore, the report is proposing to focus on two immediate
initiatives:
(a) The improvement of the appearance of a section of Fairfield Road
including improvements to the public realm and some of the private
properties fronting onto Fairfield Road
(b) Addressing the derelict condition of the existing buildings and create an
enhanced gateway to High Peak at Woolley Bridge

4.

How this report links to Corporate Priorities

4.1

The proposed gateway improvement Programme would link to Aim Three of
the High Peak Corporate Plan 2017-19: To support economic development
and regeneration – measured through sustainable towns and rural
communities and increased economic growth.

Page 24

5.

Options

5.1

The Executive is recommended to authorise officers to initiate a Gateway
Improvements Programme as set out in this report. The report also proposes
two initial schemes for the programme in view of the present issues
surrounding these two locations detracting from their immediate locality as well
as diminishing the positive regeneration of their respective town centres.

5.2

The recommendations are set out to allow the principle of establishing the
Gateway Improvements Programme to be considered separately from the two
initial projects.

6.

Implications

6.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
In terms of the proposed initial projects, both would potentially contribute to
improved community safety. The former public house at Woolley Bridge is
attracting trespassers who are putting themselves at danger due to its derelict
condition.
Improvements along Fairfield Road may result in reduced environmental crime
in that it is hoped that residents, property owners and visitors will adopt a
sense of pride in their surroundings.

6.2

Workforce
Not relevant to the recommendations of this report.

6.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council’s diversity and
equality Policies.

6.4

Financial Considerations
It is proposed to establish a Gateway Improvements Programme with an initial
capital budget of £64,000 made up from existing allocations within the current
capital programme shown as Heritage Regeneration Scheme (which has been
suspended) and the Landlord Accreditation Scheme. Supporting revenue
funding has been allowed for in the Operational Services waste collection
budget.

6.5

Legal
The proposals will operate using various powers available to the Council under
the Local Government Act 1972 and other legislation. The specific legal
powers will be set out along with detailed proposals in later reports.

6.6

Sustainability
The proposed Gateway Improvements Programme will aim to promote
improvements to properties and sites that are sustainable.

Page 25

6.7

Risk Assessment
Any risks arising to the Council would be in relation to the detailed proposals
which will be the subject of a later report. All risks will be set out at that time.

7.

Background and Detail

7.1

The High Peak Local Plan was adopted last year which aims to promote a
sustainable and growing local economy through the creation of job
opportunities and affordable housing so as to help people remain in, or return
to, their local communities according to local needs. It also aims to turn around
the historic and industrial legacy of the area in order to grow the tourism
economy. Buxton’s adopted vision is to become England’s Leading Spa Town
whilst Glossop will build on its growing reputation as a destination for highquality food and drink to provide a compelling mix of retail and leisure
opportunities in an appealing town centre.

7.2

The plan’s designated development sites reflect this overriding vision via a
clustered arc of employment sites from Waterside, Hadfield to Dinting Vale,
Glossop on the western edge of Glossopdale together with a corridor of
housing, employment and regeneration sites from Fairfield to Station Road in
Buxton.

7.3

Two recent developments have the potential to lead to a step-change in terms
of realising the plan’s strategic vision. These are the long awaited
construction work relating to the Buxton Crescent and Thermal Spa project
now being well underway and the recent announcement of the Mottram Moor
to Glossop Link Road being added to the government’s highways investment
programme. However, for the potential benefits of these developments for the
respective town centres to be fully realised, the Council needs to address the
poor appearance of some gateway sites to Buxton and Glossop.

7.4

This report is proposing to introduce a Gateway Improvements Programme
which will, over time, bring together a whole range of regeneration initiatives
aimed at improving facilities for the immediate local communities affected
whilst also improving the appearance of the key strategic routes into Buxton
and Glossop. It is proposed that the programme should recognise two
Gateway Zones – the Fairfield to Station Road corridor in Buxton and the A57
western entrance to Glossop – see Appendices 1 and 2. The report is also
proposing to focus on two immediate initiatives:



The improvement of the appearance of a section of Fairfield Road looking
at improvements to the public realm and some of the private properties
fronting onto Fairfield Road
Addressing the derelict condition of the former Spread Eagle Public House
(later known as the Riverside Inn) at Woolley Bridge

Page 26

Fairfield to Station Road Corridor, Buxton
7.5

Buxton’s town centre has been the subject of a heritage-led regeneration
programme for the last two decades which is shortly to reach a key milestone
with the completion of the Buxton Crescent and Thermal Spa project in 2019.
Whilst this programme has already transformed Buxton’s overall prosperity
and vibrancy, the completion of the Crescent project is anticipated to make a
step change towards realising the strategic planning vision for Buxton to
become England’s Leading Spa Town. In parallel with this, the Council is
making every effort to deliver a number of key housing and employment sites
on the northern edge of Buxton at Fairfield. If the development of these sites
can be realised, it is hoped that a significant investment can be made in the
infrastructure and facilities on offer in the Fairfield community.

7.6

Notwithstanding the above, one of the key routes into the town centre along
the A6 from Stockport via Fairfield Road presents a poor image to the town
largely due to the condition of a number of the properties on the west side of
the road. These properties, which are a mix of houses in multiple occupation,
flats and single family homes suffer from a lack of external repairs,
inappropriate alterations and untidy forecourt gardens. Whereas Council
grants have been made to a number of properties (Landlord Accreditation
Grants) these are focused on improving the standard of accommodation
available rather than the overall appearance of the property.

7.7

Public concern has been expressed about the condition of these properties so
that an initial project of the Gateway Improvements Programme proposes to:
a) Fund grants aimed at improving the front external appearance of some of
the properties including the front forecourt gardens. The aim would be to
promote a small number of exemplary improvement schemes initially in
order to demonstrate the potential improvements that can be achieved
before reviewing whether the grants project should continue in either the
same or an amended form.
b) Work with the property owners, the Buxton Town Team, Derbyshire
County Council and the Borough Council’s Operational Services team
regarding the public realm and ways of reducing the visual impact of the
large number of refuse bins.
A57 entrance to Glossop

7.8

As part of the Trans Pennine Upgrade programme, Highways England
announced in November last year that it has identified the preferred option for
the Mottram Moor and A57(T) to A57 Link Roads. This means that a budget
has been created for this within the government’s highways investment
programme and the link road will now be the subject of detailed planning
process via a Development Consent Order. Subject to the planning process
proceeding smoothly, a final decision would allow the construction to start
soon after 2020.

Page 27

7.9

The Glossop end of the new link road will re-join the existing A57 to the south
of the existing Woolley Bridge roundabout and, as a consequence, create an
opportunity to redesign the road layout which will carry significantly less traffic
and potentially create a development site. As part of the statutory consultation
process the Council is required to prepare a Local Impact Report (LIR)
identifying the impact of the new road on the local area. It is proposed to
consider the sites around this junction including the former Spread Eagle
Public House as part of this impact report.

7.10 In preparation of that, officers are proposing to prepare proposals to address
the poor appearance of the proposed major junction which forms an entrance
to High Peak. The former Spread Eagle Public House (later the Riverside Inn)
which ceased trading about 10 years ago and has subsequently fallen into
considerable disrepair and forms a poor image of the area. The owners have
made various attempts at refurbishment, all of which have stalled due to a lack
of adequate funding. The now ruinous building has attracted vandals and is
already in a dangerous condition. As the building is located immediately after
the entry signs to the Borough and Glossop, this presents a very poor image,
as well as a safety trap.
7.11 It is proposed that the Gateway Improvements Programme should investigate
the powers and procedures available to the Council to tidy up the site in the
short term to be followed by possible development of the site in the longer
term. It is also proposed to explore the opportunity to find an alternative use
for this very visible gateway site that will be more visible with the arrival of the
new bypass. An opportunity exists to remodel this site along with surrounding
sites as part of a wider land assembly to accommodate more suitable uses, of
appropriate scale, relevant to the location.
7.12 Subject to members approving the recommendations of this report, it is
proposed to bring further details back for approval relating to both projects set
out under paragraphs 7.5 -7.11 above.

Dai Larner
Executive Director - Place
Web Links and background papers

Contact details

Files kept electronically

Richard Tuffrey
Principal Regeneration Officer
Richard.tuffrey@highpeak.gov.uk

01538 395583

Page 28

Appendix 1
Plan showing the proposed Fairfield to Buxton Gateway Zone

Page 29

Key
Proposed gateway zone
Properties on Fairfield
Road referred to in the
report

Appendix 2
Plan showing the proposed A57 western entrance to Glossop

Page 30

Key
Proposed gateway zone
(excluding area outside
Borough boundary)
Site of Spread Eagle PH
referred to in the report

Agenda Item 6

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
Report to The Executive
26 April 2018
TITLE:

National Planning Policy Framework
Consultation

PORTFOLIO HOLDER:

Councillor Ashton - Leader

CONTACT OFFICER:

Pranali Parikh – Regeneration Manager

WARDS INVOLVED:

All areas

1.

Reason for the Report: To inform Councillors of the proposals in the draft
National Planning Policy Framework which is currently subject to consultation.
The report also makes recommendations regarding responding to the
consultation.

2.

Recommendation

2.1

That Councillors note the proposals in the draft National Planning Policy
Framework and the proposal to work with the Local Government Association
to submit a joint response (Option 1 in Section 5).

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

The Government is consulting on a revised draft of the National Planning
Policy Framework (NPPF) and supporting guidance until 10th May. The
consultation builds on previous document issued by Government, including
the Housing White Paper. The revised NPPF seeks to facilitate further
housing growth, protect the green belt, streamline developer contributions and
reflect changes since the introduction of the original NPPF in 2012 such as
Written Ministerial Statements and case law.

3.2

Much of the draft document can be welcomed. However, there are concerns
regarding the proposed approach to developer contributions which may have
a negative impact on the ability to maximise affordable housing contributions
on viable sites. Other concerns include the implications of the proposed
Housing Delivery Test and the standard methodology for assessing Local

Page 31

Housing Needs. It is proposed that Council engages with the Local
Government Association to submit a response to the consultation as it is more
likely to influence the final NPPF.
3.3

Once the NPPF is finalised later this Summer, it will be a material
consideration to planning applications and it will form the policy basis for a
future review of the Local Plan.

4.

How this report links to Corporate Priorities

4.1

The National Planning Policy Framework will have implications for the
following Corporate Priorities by influencing future decisions regarding
planning applications and any updates to the Local Plan:
•
•
•

Aim One - Help create a safer and healthier environment for our
residents to live and work
Aim Three - Support economic development & regeneration
Aim Four - Protect and improve the environment.

5.

Options and Analysis.

5.1

Option 1 (recommended) – that the Council liaises with the Local Government
Association to submit a joint response to the consultation. This is
recommended as it is considered that such a response will carry more weight.

5.2

Option 2 (not recommended) – that the Council submits its own response or
does not respond to the consultation. This is not recommended as it would
provide the Council with less or no influence over national policy.

6.

Implications

6.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
No implications.

6.2

Workforce
None direct

6.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
The report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's
Diversity and Equality Policies.

6.4

Financial Considerations
The potential for the proposed Housing Delivery Test to influence
future New Homes Bonus payments could have financial

Page 32

implications for the Council. This will be subject to separate
consultation at a later date. As such, the implications at this stage
are unclear.
6.5

Legal
Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004
and section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
dictates that applications for planning permission should be
determined in accordance with the development plan, unless
material considerations indicate otherwise. Once adopted, the new
NPPF will become a material consideration to planning
applications.

6.6

Sustainability
The draft NPPF still requires Local Plans to be supported by a
Sustainability Appraisal.

6.7

Internal and External Consultation
The draft National Planning Policy Framework has been published
for public consultation until 10th May. It is proposed that the Council
engages with the Local Government Association to prepare a joint
response to Government.

6.8

Risk Assessment
If the Council does not engage with the consultation, there will be
an increased risk that the revised NPPF has a negative impact on
the Borough. If the Council does not engage with the Local
Government Association to respond, there is an increased risk that
the Borough Council’s response will carry less weight. These risks
are minimised, but not eliminated, through Option 1 in Section 5 to
this report.

7.

Background and Detail

7.1

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out the Government’s
policy in respect of planning and how they should be applied. It provides the
framework for the preparation of Local Plans and other planning documents
such as Neighbourhood Plans. The NPPF is also a material consideration for
planning applications. The current NPPF was established in 2012 and has
been subject to review by Government. A revised draft has now been issued
for consultation which builds on initial proposals published by Government in
previous years. The proposals reflect consultation feedback gather to date,
Written Ministerial Statements issued since the publication of the NPPF in
2012 and the effect of case law on the interpretation of the current NPPF.

7.2

Alongside the draft NPPF are proposals for updates to the National Planning
Practice Guidance (NPPG) which supplements the NPPF. Further proposals

Page 33

for reforming developer contributions (S106 agreements) are also expected
to be brought forward through regulations.
The overarching premise of the draft NPPF is to facilitate the Government’s
drive to increase house building across England with a view to delivering
300,000 net additional homes per year. However, there remains a strong
commitment to protect the Green Belt. In this context, a summary of the key
proposals is provided below. A link to the Government’s own overview of the
proposals and detailed wording of the draft NPPF is provided at the end of
this report.

7.3

Housing requirements and supply


A new standard methodology for determining local housing needs is proposed
to determine the minimum number of homes to be provided for in Local Plans.
Any needs that cannot be met within neighbouring areas should also be taken
into account. The methodology should apply unless there are there are
exceptional circumstances that justify an alternative approach which also
reflects current and future demographic trends and market signals. The
assessment of Local Housing Need will be informed by the latest household
projections over a ten year period published by the Government with an
adjustment to reflect local affordability of housing. This is determined by
considering the ratio of local average income to local average house prices
applying data published by the Office for National Statistics. Provisions for
caps to the Local Housing Need are also set out in recognition of the fact that
in some parts of the country, the new methodology will result in an increase in
housing requirements. Based on data currently available, the Local Housing
Need figure in High Peak would be lower than the current Local Plan
requirement and objectively assessed need for housing (350 homes per year).
However, it is important to note that the current High Peak figures include an
uplift to support economic growth and affordable housing provision which
does not form part of the standard methodology. The new method also only
determines the minimum number of homes to be provided. New household
projections and affordability ratio data is due to be published later this year.
This data will confirm the implications of the new methodology when it is in
place. An extract from the draft NPPG is provided at Appendix 1 to this report
which sets out the methodology in more detail. The greater certainty regarding
the minimum number of homes to be provided under the standard
methodology is supported. However, it is considered that development
requirements for Local Plan will still prove to be contentious. In order to
provide further clarity for areas seeking to provide more homes that the
minimum number required, it is considered that the NPPG should provide
further guidance and support for this. This would apply in areas such as High
Peak with a high need for affordable housing and where economic growth
would also be facilitated through additional housing.



Local plans should provide for objectively assessed needs for development,
including unmet need from neighbouring areas, unless particular policies
provide "a strong reason for restricting the overall scale” of development. The
balancing exercise to justify not meeting needs in full whereby any adverse
impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the

Page 34

benefits remains. This proposal formalises what in effect has already been
good practice as local authorities have sought to address unmet housing
needs through the Duty to Co-operate.


Policies providing a specific reason for restricting development are set out in a
defined list rather than as examples as in the present NPPF. They include
green belt, land “within” national parks, local green spaces and Sites of
Special Scientific Interest. This clarity is supported. However, recognition of
the constraints placed on local authorities that adjoin or a partially within a
national park should also be acknowledged given their statutory duty to have
regard to the purposes of national park as specified in the Environment Act
1995, namely;
(i) to conserve and enhance the natural beauty, wildlife and cultural heritage
of the national parks; and
(ii) to promote opportunities for the understanding and enjoyment of the
special qualities [of the parks] by the public.



As with the current NPPF, the presumption in favour of sustainable
development would be triggered where a council cannot demonstrate a fiveyear housing supply. In areas with recent1 Neighbourhood Plans that plan for
housing, the NPPF states that it is unlikely that the benefits of the
development would outweigh the harm provided that there is a three year
supply of housing and its housing delivery was at least 45% of that required
over the previous three years. This carries forward the existing extra
protection for areas with Neighbourhood Plans as set out in the 2016 Written
Ministerial Statement. This reflects the current approach.



The presumption in favour of sustainable development may also apply where
a new housing delivery test indicates that delivery of housing has been
substantially below the housing requirement over the previous three years.
The Secretary of State will publish the Housing Delivery Test result for each local
planning authority in England every November. The full implications of the
Housing Delivery Test results are proposed to be:
o The publication of an action plan if housing delivery falls below 95%.
The action plan would set out how the local authority intends to
increase delivery;
o A 20% buffer on a local planning authority’s five-year land supply if
housing delivery falls below 85%; and
o The presumption in favour of sustainable development if housing
delivery falls below 75%, once proposed transitional arrangements
have ended
The transitional arrangements for the Housing Delivery Test are:

1

Recent being defined as passed at referendum two years or less before the date on which the
decision is made

Page 35

o From the day following the publication of the 2018 Housing Delivery
Test result, the presumption will apply if housing delivery falls below
25%;
o From the day following the publication of the 2019 Housing Delivery
Test result, the presumption will apply if housing delivery falls below
45%;
o From the day following the publication of the 2020 Housing Delivery
Test result, the presumption will apply if housing delivery falls below
75% (the final threshold)
The supporting documentation to the draft NPPF suggests that in future, the
Housing Delivery Test may also be used in determining New Homes Bonus
payments. This would be subject to further separate consultation before proposed
implementation in 2019-20. Whilst the need to encourage local authorities to
facilitate housing delivery is acknowledged, it is of concern that the proposed
housing delivery test will potentially undermine Local Plans and the “plan-led
system” if the presumption in favour of sustainable development is applied when
delivery falls below 75%. In many instances, delivery can be almost entirely in the
hands of private developers with the Council having little opportunity to directly
accelerate the implementation of sites with permission. It is also considered that
the Housing Delivery Test may act as a dis-incentive to local authorities who may
otherwise wish to plan for more homes than the minimum requirement
established by the standard methodology due to the extra risk of failing the
delivery test and having less influence over future applications.



In order to allow authorities to incentivise timely delivery of development, the
NPPF allows authorities to consider imposing a planning condition to bring
forward development within two years, except where a shorter timescale
could hinder the viability or deliverability of a scheme. It also encourages local
planning authorities to consider why major sites have not been built out when
considering subsequent planning applications. These measures are to be
welcomed.



Councils would be able to demonstrate a five-year supply of deliverable sites
through a recently adopted local plan2 or an annual position statement. The
draft includes a mechanism allowing the five-year land supply position to be
agreed for a one-year period, subject to a ten per cent buffer "to account for
any fluctuations in the market during that year". This would involve
engagement with developers others who have an impact on delivery and then
consideration by the Secretary of State. The annual position statement must
also incorporate changes recommended by the Secretary of State if
agreement cannot reached between the parties regarding specific sites during
the engagement process. The principle of this approach is supported as it
would reduce the frequency with which the housing land supply is contested
at planning appeals.

2

A plan adopted between 1 May and 31 October will be considered ‘recently adopted’ until 31
October of the following year; and a plan adopted between 1 November and 30 April will be
considered recently adopted until 31 October that year

Page 36

Local Plans


The “tests of soundness” that Local Plans are considered against at
examination are proposed to be amended. Plans will need to show that they
propose "an appropriate strategy", compared with the current requirement for
them to constitute "the most appropriate strategy" for the area. In order for
Local Plans to pass the test of being “positively prepared”, the draft NPPF
states that plans should “meet as much as possible” development needs. This
appears to be a softening of these two tests which should be less onerous for
local authorities to pass at examination. In order for plans to be considered
“effective”, they will in future need to be evidenced by statements of common
ground which establish strategic matters of co-operation between the Council
and other bodies. This Council agreed similar memoranda of understanding
with Cheshire East Council, Stockport Metropolitan Borough Council and the
Peak District National Park Authority during the preparation of the adopted
Local Plan. These proposals can be supported.



There is a new requirement for authorities to review Local Plan policies every
five years following the date of adoption, with updates, if necessary, to reflect
changing circumstances. This may include changes to the Local Housing
Need. The NPPF update merely reflects Regulation 10A of The Town and
Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended)
which introduced the plan review requirement on 6th April 2018.



The test for Green Belt release to be proposed in Local Plans only in
“exceptional circumstances” is carried forward from the existing NPPF.
However, further clarification is given on how this must be demonstrated.
Planning authorities must fully examine "all other reasonable options" for
meeting their identified development needs before releasing green belt by;
making as much use as possible of suitable brownfield sites and underutilised
land, optimising densities in town centres and other locations well served by
public transport" and considering the scope for development to be
accommodated in neighbouring authorities. Councils are also advised to set
out ways in which the impact of removing land from the green belt can be
offset through compensatory improvements to the environmental quality and
accessibility of remaining green belt land. The clarification of the approach
required support green belt release is welcomed.



Local plans should set out a housing requirement figure for designated
neighbourhood areas and this should not need retesting at neighbourhood
plan examinations. The adopted High Peak Local Plan already sets out the
requirement for the Chapel-en-le-Frith Neighbourhood Plan. This requirement
can be supported.

 Where policy requirements have been tested for viability at the plan-making
stage, such issues should not usually need to be visited again at the planning
application stage. The proposed new policy expects all viability assessments
to reflect a recommended approach to be set in revised national planning
guidance and says all viability assessments should be made publicly
available. The guidance says plans can set out when and how review
mechanisms may be used to amend developer contributions to help account

Page 37

for significant changes in costs and values, and how any significant increase
in overall value should be apportioned between the local authority and the
developer. This is intended to make the process more streamlined and
transparent. The principle of this approach is supported. However, it is
considered that removing the flexibility for negotiating S106 agreement could
have unintended consequences. Some schemes could be rendered unviable
unless the policy requirements are set as such a low level that they are viable
in the vast majority of cases. Setting requirements at such a level will
inevitably result in lower levels of contributions towards planning gain,
including affordable housing, from the more viable sites in the Borough with
the potential to support further contributions.
 The consultation document that accompanies the draft NPPF states that the
Government is "open to views" over its proposals to require councils to ensure
that one-fifth of their housing supply pipeline in Local Plans is made up of
small sites of under half a hectare. This approach is considered to be arbitrary
and may lead to lengthy Local Plan examinations with discussion around
many more sites than previously which, individually, offer little in terms of
housing land supply. A more pragmatic approach would be for windfall
allowances to count towards the boost to the supply of small sites.
 There is a clear requirement for policies for addressing the housing
requirements of groups with particular needs. In addition, to the elderly and
disabled, students and travellers have been added to the list, as have people
who rent their homes. This can be supported.
Developer contributions


In a separate consultation, the government proposes that it may in the future
consider setting developer contributions nationally and making them "nonnegotiable. As stated above, this proposal may have unintended and
unhelpful consequences that should be avoided.

Timescales and implications
7.4

The consultation closes on 10 May 2018. The final NPPF is expected to be
issued later this Summer. Annex 1 to the draft NPPF sets out the transitional
arrangements for the implementation of the new NPPF once it is published.
The NPPF will be a material consideration to planning applications from the
day of its publication.

7.5

Local Plans may also need to be revised to reflect policy changes. However,
existing policies should not be considered out-of-date simply because they
were adopted or made prior to the new NPPF. Due weight should be given to
them, according to their degree of consistency with the NPFF (the closer the
policies in the plan to the policies in the NPPF, the greater the weight that may
be given). Accordingly, the new NPPF will form the basis of the next review of
the Local Plan.

Page 38

Dai Larner
Executive Director - Place

Web Links and
Background Papers

Location

https://www.gov.uk/government/con Buxton Town Hall
sultations/draft-revised-nationalplanning-policy-framework

Page 39

Contact details

Mark James (Senior
Regeneration Officer Planning Policy)
mark.james@highpeak.go
v.uk. Ext. 3643.

APPENDIX 1 – Extract from the draft NPPG – standard methodology for
assessing minimum Local Housing Needs
STEP 1 - SETTING THE BASELINE
National Household projections, for the area of the local authority, provide the starting
point.

The household projections are produced by applying projected household representative
rates to the population projections published by the Office for National Statistics.
Projected household representative rates are based on trends observed in Census and
Labour Force Survey data.
The household projections are trend based, meaning that they provide the household
levels and structures that would result if the assumptions based on previous
demographic trends in the population and rates of household formation were to be
realised in practice. They do not attempt to predict the impact that future government
policies, changing economic circumstances or other factors might have on demographic
behaviour.
The most recent official projections need to be used to calculate the average annual
household growth over a 10 year period.
STEP 2 - AN ADJUSTMENT TO TAKE ACCOUNT OF MARKET SIGNALS

An important consideration in assessing an appropriate level of housing is the
affordability of homes, which means that projected household growth needs to be
adjusted to take account of market signals.
Median affordability ratios, published by the Office for National Statistics at a local
authority level, should be used for adjusting household projections. The affordability
ratios compare the median house prices to median workplace earnings. Plan-making
authorities should use the most recent year for which data is available.
Each 1% increase in the ratio of house prices to earnings above 4 results in a quarter of
a per cent increase in need above projected household growth. The precise formula is
as follows:

The local housing need figure is therefore as follows:
Local housing need = (1+adjustment factor) x projected household growth
So, for example, an area with a projected household growth of 132 a year would have
an annual need of:
• 132 if average house prices were 4 times local average earnings
• 165 if average houses prices were 8 times local average earnings
• 198 if average house prices were 12 times local average earnings

Page 40

STEP 3 - CAPPING THE LEVEL OF ANY INCREASE

The market adjustment could lead to a significant increase in the local housing need in
some parts of the country. To help ensure the method is deliverable, a cap on the local
housing need may be applied. The appropriate cap will depend on the current status of
the plan in each authority as follows:
a. for those authorities that have reviewed their plan (including a review of local housing
need) or adopted their plan in the last five years, a cap may be applied to their new
annual local housing need figure at 40% above the average annual requirement figure
currently set out in their plan; or
b. for those authorities that have not reviewed their plan (including a review of local
housing need) or adopted their plan in the last five years, a cap may be applied to their
new annual local housing need figure at 40% above whichever is higher of the projected
household growth for their area over the 10 years (using Office for National Statistics’
household projections), or the annual housing requirement figure set out in their most
recent plan if one exists.

Page 41

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
Report to The Executive
26 April 2018
TITLE:

Minor Amendments to Street Trading Consent
Policy to include Charitable Events

PORTFOLIO:

Councillor Kemp – Executive Councillor for
Tourism, Regeneration and Licensing

OFFICER:

Alicia Patterson - Operations Manager (Regulatory
Services)

WARD:

Non specific

Appendix 1 - Street Trading Consent Policy
Appendix 2 - Amended Street Trading Consent Policy

1

2

Recommendations
1.1

That The Executive considers the amendments to the current Street
Trading Consent Policy to include provision for charitable events as
detailed below.

1.2

That The Executive approves the amended Street Trading Consent Policy
attached at Appendix 2.

Executive Summary
2.1

The Council’s licensing section have been approached by a number of
event organisers and have been asked for a concession to recognise their
charitable events and reduce or waive the current cost of the street trading
fees to enable the events to continue within the Borough.

2.2

On 1st October 2008 the Council re-designated the streets in High Peak in
accordance with Schedule 4 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous
Provision) Act 1982 and introduced a Street Trading Consent Policy to
provide a transparent framework for the decision making process, and to
ensure that the system operated within the constitutional arrangements.

Page 43

3

2.3

The current Street Trading Consent Policy was introduced in 2014 but
does not make provision for charitable events within the Borough. It is
proposed, therefore, that the Council’s policy is amended to allow for
charitable events to receive a Street Trading Consent without a charge
being applied.

2.4

It is proposed that the following additional paragraphs be added to the
Council’s Street Trading Consent Policy:

If the event is charitable and all of the profit from these stalls or units
will be donated to the charity then a Charitable Street Trading Consent
can be applied for. Please apply at least 21 days prior to the event
taking place. There will be no charge for these consents. Your charity
will need to be registered with the Charity Commission to qualify for
this consent, or you will need to supply a detailed account of donations
to registered charities within six weeks of the event.



If the event is charitable and all of the profits go to the charity, but you
have invited itinerant traders to come to the event to provide food and
refreshments to persons attending the event, then these traders will
need their own Street Trading Consent.

Options
To approve the proposed amendments to the Street Trading Consent Policy or
consider further changes.

4

Implications
4.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
The appropriate enforcement of licensing legislation in partnership with relevant
agencies is a key tool in assuring the maintenance of community safety.

4.2

Workforce
None arise directly from this report.

4.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Diversity
and Equality Policies.

Page 44

4.4

Financial Considerations
The discharge of inspection and enforcement functions have been
included within previous budget calculations for the services.

4.5

Legal
The requirements of the various licensing legislation places a duty on
licence holders under the criminal law. In enforcing the conditions relating
to this legislation the Licensing service has powers to undertake
prosecutions relevant to the offences identified.

4.6

Sustainability
None arise directly from this report.

4.7

Internal and External Consultation
As detailed in the report.

4.8

Risk Assessment
As detailed in the report.

Mark Trillo
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer

Background Papers

Location

Contact

N/A

Licensing Office, High Peak
Borough Council

Alicia Patterson –
Operations Manager

Page 45

This page is intentionally left blank



High Peak Borough Council
working for our community

Regulatory Services

Street Trading Consent
Policy

October 2014

Page 47

This page is blank

Page 48

INDEX

PAGES

1

Introduction

4

2

Aim of High Peak Borough Council’s Street Trading
Consent Policy

4

3

Scope of the Policy

4

4

Interpretation

4

5

Application Process

5

6

Consultation with interested parties

5

7

Consideration of Applications

5

8

Conditions applicable to street trading consents

6

9

Promotion of racial equality

7

1
0

Human Rights Act 1998

7

1
1

Avoidance of duplication with other regulatory bodies

7

1
2

Enforcement

7

1
3

Administration, exercise and delegation of functions

8

APPENDICES
Appendix 1 - delegation of functions and decisions

Page 49

9

1.0

Introduction

1.1

Street trading means the selling, exposing or offering for sale any
article in a street. The term 'street' includes any road, footway or other
area to which the public have access without payment (this can include
private land). High Peak Borough Council (“the Council”) has adopted
Schedule 4 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act
1982 (“the 1982 Act”) for Consent is required before trading in certain
places. Other locations have prohibitions on Street Trading at any
time.

1.2

This policy does not include activities such as placing goods for sale on
the street, street café’s operating from a fixed premises or the siting of
“A” Boards on the street as this is not within the remit of the above
legislation.

1.3

The Council has an overall aim to improve the quality of life in the High
Peak. The Council has four main aims around which it has centred its
ambitions for the community. These aims are:




Provide Quality Services in Partnership with Communities.
Meet Financial Challenges and Provide Value for Money
Support Economic Development and Regeneration
Protect and Improve the Environment

2.0

Aim of High Peak Borough Council’s Statement of Street
Trading Consent Policy

2.1

The aim of the statement of street trading consent policy (“the policy”)
is to provide a consistent and transparent approach to the method of
providing street trading consent

2.2

To achieve this aim the Council is committed to partnership working
with Derbyshire Constabulary, Derbyshire County Council, the trade
and local fixed premises businesses.

2.3

The policy sets out how we intend to manage the street trading
consent function and how we will ensure the process is fair.

3.0

Scope of the Policy

3.1

The Council’s policy is concerned with the administration of the Street
Trading Consent functions the Local Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act 1982.

4.0

Interpretation

4.1

Any words or expressions in this policy have the meanings assigned
to them under the 1982 Act or regulations made thereunder or, in
absence, guidance issued by the Secretary of State or guidance

Page 50

produced by the Council. Nothing in the policy can be regarded or
interpreted so as to prejudice the 1982 Act.
5.0

Application Process

5.1

Applications must be made on the application form provided by the
Council and be accompanied by a copy of the applicants current
Public Liability Insurance and a photograph of the trading unit.

5.2

Along with the items in 5.1, proposed food businesses must be
registered under the Food Regulations with the Local Authority where
their vehicle is based and provide evidence that they are registered. If
the business is based in the High Peak, and they are not currently
registered with High Peak Borough Council, they should register with
the Council before a Consent will be granted.

5.2

Applications will be considered within the time limits set in Appendix 1.

5.3

Once a decision has been made on the application, the applicant will
be notified in writing, if the applicant is successful then the 1 st
instalment or payment in full of the consent is required prior to the
consent being issued.

6.0

Consultation with interested parties

6.1

On receipt of an application, the Council may request further
information, depending on the circumstances of each individual
application. Prior to determining an application, the Council will consult
with such persons and in such manner as it sees fit. This may include
consultation with:
a) occupiers of premises in the vicinity of the proposed trading
location;
b) the local chamber of trade;
c) the local town or parish council;
d) the police;
e) the Highway Authority Derbyshire County Council
f) ward members
g) other relevant council departments
h) any other body deemed appropriate

7.0

Consideration of Applications

7.1

The Council will consider each individual application on its merits and
will normally grant a street trading consent unless, in its opinion:
a) There is not enough space for the applicant to trade in the
manner proposed without causing undue interference or
inconvenience to persons using the street.

Page 51

b) There are already enough traders trading in the vicinity (from
shops or other stalls) in the goods in which the applicant desires
to trade.
c) There is undue concentration of traders trading in the street in
which the applicant desires to trade.
d) The consent, if granted, will result in nuisance to members of the
public, residents and local businesses due to the likely noise,
smell, litter, disturbance or other problems which will be caused
by granting the consent.
e) The size, nature or appearance of the proposed stall (and any
associated equipment) is inappropriate for the proposed location
in terms of amenity or public or highway safety.
f) The proposed trading hours are outside the usual business
hours of shops in the vicinity.
g) There are any additional issues arising from Consultations.
7.2

The grounds for refusing an application for a Street Trading Consent
are as follows:
a)

Previous convictions for relevant offences (Dishonesty,
Food Safety, Health and Safety, Licensing or other
related issues)

b)

Failure on a previous occasion to pay street trading
consent fees within the agreed timescales.

c)

The applicant must not be under 18 years of age and any
employees under the age of 18 must be supervised at all
times and any local bye laws adhered to.

7.3

Any applications for Street Trading Consent on a site where is already
a Consent granted, there are competing applications or an application
for renewal has been received will be determined by the Licensing Sub
Committee.

8

Conditions Applicable to Street Trading Consents

8.1

Conditions will normally be imposed in all cases specifying:
a)

The place in which the consent holder is permitted to trade.

b)

The days and times at which the consent holder is permitted to
trade

c)

A description of the types of articles in which they are permitted
to trade.

d)

The nature, size and type of stall, stand etc which is to be used.

e)

That the street trading consent notice issued by the Council
must be conspicuously displayed on the stall.

Page 52

f)

If food is to be sold, that there are satisfactory handwashing
facilities in line with the food premise registration.

g)

That the trader is not to trade from the stall unless he holds and
maintains sufficient public liability cover (currently 5,000,000)

h)

Restrictions on the means the trader may use to attract custom
to their stall (could include restrictions on the use of A
Boards/amplified music etc)

i)

That a suitable receptacle for litter must be provided and
removed daily at the close of trading.

j)

That the location must be kept in a clean and tidy condition at
the end of trading hours each day.

k)

That the stall must be removed each day at the end of trading
hours, unless agreement in writing is obtained from High Peak
Borough Council.

l)

That the trader must comply with any reasonable request of a
police officer or authorised officer of the Council.

m)

That the trader must produce to a police officer or authorised
officer of the Council a copy of the consent on demand. (as per
condition e).

n)

Trader must retain their registration with their local
Environmental Health Service for Food Hygiene purposes.

o)

Operators must cease trading immediately upon expiry of a
consent or when payments (as per individual written
agreements) are overdue or when asked to do so by an officer
of the Council or police officer.

p)

The trader may be prohibited from trading at certain times due to
other extenuating circumstances.

q)

The trader is responsible for advising the Council of any change
of name or address.

8.2

The Council considers that each of the above conditions will be
reasonably necessary in relation to the majority of consents granted for
the purposes of protecting public safety and the prevention of nuisance
and annoyance to local residents, businesses in the locality and
members of the public using the streets concerned. The Licensing Sub
Committee may also impose such other conditions as it considers
reasonably necessary and relevant in any particular case.

9.0

Promotion of Racial Equality

9.1

The Council recognises that the Race Relations Act 1976, as
amended by the Race Relations (Amendment) Act 2000, places an
obligation on all public authorities to have regard to the need to
eliminate unlawful discrimination, and to promote equality of

Page 53

opportunity and good relations between persons and different racial
groups.
9.2

It is the responsibility of the trader to comply with the requirements of
the Disability Discrimination Act and the council promotes the use of
facilities which can accommodate customers with disabilities.

10.0

Human Rights Act 1998

10.1

The Council will implement the 1982 Act in a manner consistent with
the Human Rights Act 1998.

11.0

Avoidance of Duplication with other regulatory regimes

11.1

The Council acknowledges the efforts and responsibilities of other
regulators (for instance Derbyshire Constabulary, Derby County
Council, Derbyshire Fire and Rescue Service, Health and Safety
Enforcing Authority) under other legislation

12.0

Enforcement

12.1

Any enforcement action taken by the Council will be in accordance with
the Councils Enforcement Policies, and will take into account the
Government’s Enforcement Concordat.

12.2 Failure to comply with the conditions may lead to suspension,
revocation or non-renewal of the consent.
12.3 Failure to keep up agreed payments under any agreement or invoice
may result in revocation of a Consent.
12.4 Any person found trading without consent in a Consent Street or in a
Prohibited Street will be subject to enforcement action by the Council.
13.0

Administration, Exercise and Delegation of Functions

13.1

The powers and duties of the Council with regard to Street Trading
Consent may be carried out by the Licensing Sub Committee or by
officers acting under delegated authority. Since many of the functions
are administrative or compliance monitoring based in nature, in the
interests of speed, efficiency and cost-effectiveness, the Council
supports the principle of delegating routine matters to officers.
Appendix 1 sets out the delegation of functions and decisions.

13.2

At the officers’ discretion, any applications normally dealt with by
officers may be passed up for Licensing Sub Committee
determination.

Page 54

13.3

All lay-bys in the borough will normally be subject to delegated
authority decisions where no objections have been received, while all
other streets will be subject to Licensing Sub Committee
determination.

Page 55

APPENDIX 1
Table 1 - Delegation of functions and decisions

Renewal of Street Trading Consents
Matter to be dealt with
Renewal application for
Consent from a trader
who has traded in the
same location in the
previous 12 months.
Application for a
permanent Street Trading
Consent for all new
locations
Applications for Street
Trading Consent by new
customers in previously
approved pitches
Ad hoc applications for
consents less than 7
consecutive days

Licensing Sub Committee
If any objections or complaints
have been received by the
Council in the preceding 12
month period

Officers
If no objections are made
and there have not been
any complaints about the
trader in the previous 12
month period.

All cases

All cases

All cases

Table 2 - Target timescales for processing applications

Function
Sending renewal application forms
to Existing annual consent holders.
Acknowledging receipt of new
Applications received
Referral to Licensing Panel hearing
(if necessary and includes
consultation with relevant bodies).

Notification to applicant following
decision and/or production and
sending of Consent on receipt of
consent fee or agreed part of
consent fee

Time (Maximum)
Upon approval of fees at full council
3 Working days
28 days for consultation period.
15 further days for any consultation
response to be included in a report
to the Licensing Panel. Panel
hearings can be delayed.
15 days for sub committee decision
where no objection have been
received.
3 working days

Page 56



High Peak Borough Council
working for our community

Regulatory Services

Street Trading Consent
Policy

March 2018

Page 57

This page is blank

Page 58

INDEX

PAGES

1

Introduction

4

2

Aim of High Peak Borough Council’s Street Trading
Consent Policy

4

3

Scope of the Policy

4

4

Interpretation

4

5

Application Process

5

6

Consultation with interested parties

5

7

Consideration of Applications

5

8

Conditions applicable to street trading consents

6

9

Promotion of racial equality

7

1
0

Human Rights Act 1998

7

1
1

Avoidance of duplication with other regulatory bodies

7

1
2

Enforcement

7

1
3

Administration, exercise and delegation of functions

8

APPENDICES
Appendix 1 - delegation of functions and decisions

Page 59

9

1.0

Introduction

1.1

Street trading means the selling, exposing or offering for sale any
article in a street. The term 'street' includes any road, footway or other
area to which the public have access without payment (this can include
private land). High Peak Borough Council (“the Council”) has adopted
Schedule 4 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act
1982 (“the 1982 Act”) for Consent is required before trading in certain
places. Other locations have prohibitions on Street Trading at any
time.

1.2

This policy does not include activities such as placing goods for sale on
the street, street café’s operating from a fixed premises or the siting of
“A” Boards on the street as this is not within the remit of the above
legislation.

1.3

The Council has an overall aim to improve the quality of life in the High
Peak. The Council has four main aims around which it has centred its
ambitions for the community. These aims are:




Provide Quality Services in Partnership with Communities.
Meet Financial Challenges and Provide Value for Money
Support Economic Development and Regeneration
Protect and Improve the Environment

2.0

Aim of High Peak Borough Council’s Statement of Street
Trading Consent Policy

2.1

The aim of the statement of Street Trading Consent Policy (“the
policy”) is to provide a consistent and transparent approach to the
method of providing street trading consent

2.2

To achieve this aim the Council is committed to partnership working
with Derbyshire Constabulary, Derbyshire County Council, the trade
and local fixed premises businesses.

2.3

The policy sets out how we intend to manage the street trading
consent function and how we will ensure the process is fair.

3.0

Scope of the Policy

3.1

The Council’s policy is concerned with the administration of the Street
Trading Consent functions the Local Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act 1982.

4.0

Interpretation

4.1

Any words or expressions in this policy have the meanings assigned
to them under the 1982 Act or regulations made thereunder or, in
absence, guidance issued by the Secretary of State or guidance

Page 60

produced by the Council. Nothing in the policy can be regarded or
interpreted so as to prejudice the 1982 Act.
5.0

Application Process

5.1

Applications must be made on the application form provided by the
Council and be accompanied by a copy of the applicants current
Public Liability Insurance and a photograph of the trading unit.

5.2

Along with the items in 5.1, proposed food businesses must be
registered under the Food Regulations with the Local Authority where
their vehicle is based and provide evidence that they are registered. If
the business is based in the High Peak, and they are not currently
registered with High Peak Borough Council, they should register with
the Council before a Consent will be granted.

5.2

Applications will be considered within the time limits set in Appendix 1.

5.3

Once a decision has been made on the application, the applicant will
be notified in writing, if the applicant is successful then the 1 st
instalment or payment in full of the consent is required prior to the
consent being issued.

6.0

Consultation with Interested Parties

6.1

On receipt of an application, the Council may request further
information, depending on the circumstances of each individual
application. Prior to determining an application, the Council will consult
with such persons and in such manner as it sees fit. This may include
consultation with:
a) occupiers of premises in the vicinity of the proposed trading
location;
b) the local chamber of trade;
c) the local town or parish council;
d) the police;
e) the Highway Authority Derbyshire County Council
f) ward members
g) other relevant council departments
h) any other body deemed appropriate

7.0

Consideration of Applications

7.1

The Council will consider each individual application on its merits and
will normally grant a street trading consent unless, in its opinion:
a) There is not enough space for the applicant to trade in the
manner proposed without causing undue interference or
inconvenience to persons using the street.

Page 61

b) There are already enough traders trading in the vicinity (from
shops or other stalls) in the goods in which the applicant desires
to trade.
c) There is undue concentration of traders trading in the street in
which the applicant desires to trade.
d) The consent, if granted, will result in nuisance to members of the
public, residents and local businesses due to the likely noise,
smell, litter, disturbance or other problems which will be caused
by granting the consent.
e) The size, nature or appearance of the proposed stall (and any
associated equipment) is inappropriate for the proposed location
in terms of amenity or public or highway safety.
f) The proposed trading hours are outside the usual business
hours of shops in the vicinity.
g) There are any additional issues arising from Consultations.
7.2

The grounds for refusing an application for a Street Trading Consent
are as follows:
a) Previous convictions for relevant offences (Dishonesty, Food
Safety, Health and Safety, Licensing or other related issues)
b) Failure on a previous occasion to pay street trading consent
fees within the agreed timescales.
c) The applicant must not be under 18 years of age and any
employees under the age of 18 must be supervised at all times
and any local bye laws adhered to.

7.3

Any applications for Street Trading Consent on a site where is already
a Consent granted, there are competing applications or an application
for renewal has been received will be determined by the Licensing Sub
Committee.

7.4

If the event is charitable and all of the profit from these stalls or units
will be donated to the charity then a Charitable Street Trading Consent
can be applied for. Please apply at least 21 days prior to the event
taking place. There will be no charge for these consents. Your charity
will need to be registered with the Charity Commission to qualify for this
consent, or you will need to supply a detailed account of donations to
registered charities within six weeks of the event

7.5

If the event is charitable and all of the profits go to the charity, but you
have invited itinerant traders to come to the event to provide food and
refreshments to persons attending the event, then these traders will
need their own Street Trading Consent.

Page 62

8

Conditions applicable to street trading consents

8.1

Conditions will normally be imposed in all cases specifying:
a)

The place in which the consent holder is permitted to trade.

b)

The days and times at which the consent holder is permitted to
trade

c)

A description of the types of articles in which they are permitted
to trade.

d)

The nature, size and type of stall, stand etc which is to be used.

e)

That the street trading consent notice issued by the Council
must be conspicuously displayed on the stall.

f)

If food is to be sold, that there are satisfactory handwashing
facilities in line with the food premise registration.

g)

That the trader is not to trade from the stall unless he holds and
maintains sufficient public liability cover (currently 5,000,000)

h)

Restrictions on the means the trader may use to attract custom
to their stall (could include restrictions on the use of A
Boards/amplified music etc)

i)

That a suitable receptacle for litter must be provided and
removed daily at the close of trading.

j)

That the location must be kept in a clean and tidy condition at
the end of trading hours each day.

k)

That the stall must be removed each day at the end of trading
hours, unless agreement in writing is obtained from High Peak
Borough Council.

l)

That the trader must comply with any reasonable request of a
police officer or authorised officer of the Council.

m)

That the trader must produce to a police officer or authorised
officer of the Council a copy of the consent on demand. (as per
condition e).

n)

Trader must retain their registration with their local
Environmental Health Service for Food Hygiene purposes.

o)

Operators must cease trading immediately upon expiry of a
consent or when payments (as per individual written
agreements) are overdue or when asked to do so by an officer
of the Council or police officer.

p)

The trader may be prohibited from trading at certain times due to
other extenuating circumstances.

q)

The trader is responsible for advising the Council of any change
of name or address.

Page 63

8.2

The Council considers that each of the above conditions will be
reasonably necessary in relation to the majority of consents granted for
the purposes of protecting public safety and the prevention of nuisance
and annoyance to local residents, businesses in the locality and
members of the public using the streets concerned. The Licensing Sub
Committee may also impose such other conditions as it considers
reasonably necessary and relevant in any particular case.

9.0

Promotion of Racial Equality

9.1

The Council recognises that the Race Relations Act 1976, as
amended by the Race Relations (Amendment) Act 2000, places an
obligation on all public authorities to have regard to the need to
eliminate unlawful discrimination, and to promote equality of
opportunity and good relations between persons and different racial
groups.

9.2

It is the responsibility of the trader to comply with the requirements of
the Disability Discrimination Act and the council promotes the use of
facilities which can accommodate customers with disabilities.

10.0

Human Rights Act 1998

10.1

The Council will implement the 1982 Act in a manner consistent with
the Human Rights Act 1998.

11.0

Avoidance of Duplication with other regulatory regimes

11.1

The Council acknowledges the efforts and responsibilities of other
regulators (for instance Derbyshire Constabulary, Derby County
Council, Derbyshire Fire and Rescue Service, Health and Safety
Enforcing Authority) under other legislation

12.0

Enforcement

12.1

Any enforcement action taken by the Council will be in accordance with
the Councils Enforcement Policies, and will take into account the
Government’s Enforcement Concordat.

12.2 Failure to comply with the conditions may lead to suspension,
revocation or non-renewal of the consent.
12.3 Failure to keep up agreed payments under any agreement or invoice
may result in revocation of a Consent.
12.4 Any person found trading without consent in a Consent Street or in a
Prohibited Street will be subject to enforcement action by the Council.

Page 64

13.0

Administration, Exercise and Delegation of Functions

13.1

The powers and duties of the Council with regard to Street Trading
Consent may be carried out by the Licensing Sub Committee or by
officers acting under delegated authority. Since many of the functions
are administrative or compliance monitoring based in nature, in the
interests of speed, efficiency and cost-effectiveness, the Council
supports the principle of delegating routine matters to officers.
Appendix 1 sets out the delegation of functions and decisions.

13.2

At the officers’ discretion, any applications normally dealt with by
officers may be passed up for Licensing Sub Committee
determination.

13.3

All lay-bys in the borough will normally be subject to delegated
authority decisions where no objections have been received, while all
other streets will be subject to Licensing Sub Committee
determination.

Page 65

APPENDIX 1
Table 1 - Delegation of functions and decisions

Renewal of Street Trading Consents
Matter to be dealt with
Renewal application for
Consent from a trader
who has traded in the
same location in the
previous 12 months.
Application for a
permanent Street Trading
Consent for all new
locations
Applications for Street
Trading Consent by new
customers in previously
approved pitches
Ad hoc applications for
consents less than 7
consecutive days

Licensing Sub Committee
If any objections or complaints
have been received by the
Council in the preceding 12
month period

Officers
If no objections are made
and there have not been
any complaints about the
trader in the previous 12
month period.

All cases

All cases

All cases

Table 2 - Target timescales for processing applications

Function
Sending renewal application forms
to Existing annual consent holders.
Acknowledging receipt of new
Applications received
Referral to Licensing Panel hearing
(if necessary and includes
consultation with relevant bodies).

Notification to applicant following
decision and/or production and
sending of Consent on receipt of
consent fee or agreed part of
consent fee

Time (Maximum)
Upon approval of fees at full council
3 Working days
28 days for consultation period.
15 further days for any consultation
response to be included in a report
to the Licensing Panel. Panel
hearings can be delayed.
15 days for sub committee decision
where no objection have been
received.
3 working days

Page 66

Agenda Item 9

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 67

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 69

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 83

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 119

Agenda Item 11

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 12

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 143

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 153

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 155

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 157

Agenda Item 13

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 14

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 175

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 181

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 15

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 191

This page is intentionally left blank

